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Management Discussion and Analysis

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Global growth is projected at 3.1 percent in 2024 and 3.2 percent in 2025, with the 2024 forecast 0.2
percentage point higher than that in the October 2023 World Economic Outlook (WEQ) on account of
greater-than-expected resilience in the United States and several large emerging market and developing
economies, as well as fiscal support in China, The forecast for 2024-25 is, however, below the historical
(2000-19} average of 3.8 percent, with elevated central bank policy rates to fight inflation, a withdrawal
of fiscal support amid high debt weighing on economic activity, and low underlying productivity growth.
Inflation is falling faster than expected in most regions, in the midst of unwinding supply-side issues and
restriclive monelary policy. Glubal headline inflation Is expected to fall to 5.8 percent in 2024 and to 4.4
percent in 2025, with the 2025 forecast revised down.

With disinflation and steady growth, the likelihood of a hard landing has receded, and risks to global
growth are broadly balanced. On the upside, faster disinflation could lead to further easing of financial
conditions. Looser fiscal policy than necessary and than assumed in the projections could imply
temporarily higher growth, but at the risk of a more costly adjustment later on. Stronger structural
reform momentum could bolster productivity with positive cross-border spillovers. On the downside,
new commodity price spikes from geopolitical shocks—including continued attacks in the Red Sea—and
supply disruptions or more persistent underlying inflation could prolong tight monetary conditions.
Deepening property sector woes in China or, elsewhere, a disruptive turn to tax hikes and spending cuts
could also cause growth disappointments

Policymakers’ near-term challenge is to successfully manage the final descent of inflation to target,
calibrating monetary policy in response to underlying inflation dynamics and—where wage and price
pressures are clearly dissipating—adjusting to a less restrictive stance. At the same time, in many cases,
with inflation declining and economies better able to absorb effects of fiscal tightening, a renewed focus
on fiscal consolidation to rebuild budgetary capacity to deal with future shocks, raise revenue for new
spending priorities, and curb the rise of public debt is needed. Targeted and carefully sequenced
structural reforms would reinforce productivity growth and debt sustainability and accelerate
convergence toward higher income levels. More efficient multilateral coordination is needed for, among
other things, debt resolution, to avoid debt distress and create space for necessary investments, as well
as to mitigate'the effects of climate change.

Overview of the Indian Economy

The Indian economy is projected to grow at 7.5 per cent in 2024, the World Bank has said, revising its
earlier projections for the same period by 1.2 per cent. Overall, growth in South Asia is expected to be
strong at 6.0 per cent in 2024, driven mainly by robust growth in India and recoveries in Pakistan and Sri
Lanka,

According to the report, in India, inflation has remained within the Reserve Bank of India's 2-6 per cent
target range since a spike in mid-2023, and the policy rate has remained unchanged since February
2023. Food price inflation has been elevated, partly reflecting a weak harvesi.¢&==a Nino, it said.
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Financial conditions in India have remained accommodative. Domestic credit issuance to the
commercial sector (including public and private borrowers) grew by 14 per cent (year-on-year) in
December 2023, the fastest pace since 2013. Financial soundness indicators continued to improve. The
nonperforming-loan ratio fell to 3.2 per cent last year, well below its recent peak, in March 2018, of
about 11 per cent.

Regulatory capital totalled 17 per cent of bank assets in the second quarter of 2023, surpassing both
regulatory requirements and peer averages. FD| as a share of GDP fell in 2023, but a rebound in foreign
portfolio investment inflows in FY2023-24 contributed to foreign reserves rising 8 percent in the year to
January 2024, reaching a level sufficient to cover about 11 months of imports.

In India, output growth is projected to reach 7.5 percent in FY2023/24 on the back of robust growth in
Q3 of FY2023/24. Growth is expected to moderate to 6.6 percent in FY2024/25 before picking up in
subsequent years as a decade of robust public investment yields growth dividends,” the bank said.
The expected slowdown in growth between FY2023/24 and FY2024/25 mainly reflects a deceleration in
investment from its elevated pace in the previous year, it said. "Growth in services and industry is
expected to remain robust, the latter aided by strong construction and real estate activity. Inflationary
pressures are expected to subside, creating more policy space for easing financial conditions," it said.
"Over the medium term, the fiscal deficit and government debt are projected to decline, supported by
robust cutput growth and consolidation efforts by the central government.

Housing Finance Industry

In FY24 the overall economy has recovered at a fast pace and the housing finance industry has
witnessed a robust demand within the lending business. Size of real estate market is expected to reach
50 lac crore by FY 2025 and with more and more people accessing credit, the size of home ioans is
expected to reach ~20 lakh crore,

Our country consists of a young population, which is capable and more eager to invest in the real estate
market than ever. Demand for bigger homes to support the improved stand4rd of living and lifestyle of
individual has boosted the demand for housing space. Increasing population and the work from home
culture have pumped up the demand for bigger homes. Thus we have seen a surge in need for housing
finance.

" The growing importance of home loans can also be’éa’ugéd from the fact that the ratio of outstanding
individual home loans by Banks and HFCs in India’s GDP has grown substantially in the last ten years.

India has seen a substantial growth in new business in the post pandemic era, due to increased access
to credit and rising urbanization with wide reach to the unserved and underserved consumers.

Challenges faced by HFCs

Some of the key challenges faced by the housing finance companies are as under:

* High costs: Delays in completion of housing

'cost overruns due to the unavailability of labour

relatively,
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* High Customer Attrition: HFCs are facing more and more difficulty in retaining customers. Borrowers
with good track record are easy targets of banks who have the ability to lend at much more competitive
rates as compared to HFCs,

* Increased Competition: New regional housing finance companies are giving stiff competition to the
established players and at the same time, banks have stepped up efforts in increasing their presence in
housing finance space. This would put additional pressure on the productivity and margins of housing
finance companies.

Positives for HFCs in the near future;

* Growth Remains Steady: Growth for HFCs has remained strong during the pandemic with adequate
regulatory and government support. Incrementally, growth has been seen across mid to large players,
driven by parentage aiding their funding cost thereby driving overall competitiveness. The affordable
category has seen strongest growth in the housing finance industry. The government thrust through
Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme and Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana schemes has 66 Annual Report 2022-23
been instrumental in driving the demand. Affordable players are expected to grow 16% yoy in FY24,
almost at similar rate as FY 23. The demand from home ownership aspirations in tier 2 and 3 cities will
drive the growth.

¢ Improving Funding Environment, NHB Pool to Have Wider Reach with Large Player Merging: While the
borrowing avenues differ across large and affordable players, funding for HFCs has remained largely
stable, Mid-to-large players borrow through multiple channels, although the rising interest rates has
increased the dependence on banks. Capital market borrowings have remained muted across players as
pricing has remained high due to liquidity tightness in the system along with a moderation of funding
appetite from mutual funds. A large incumbent merging with a bank would free-up fund availability
from NHB side to existing incumbents, thus aiding funding cost. Also, affordable players have significant
share of their funding coming from NHB, as it is lower in cost and this drives customer retention by
withstanding competition from banks and SFBs.

* Home Investment Plans: Covid-19 made people rethink about their home buying and investments
plans. The concept is to invest in a home, either to live or to leverage it as an asset that could generate
an extra source of income, mainly to be used in a crisis period. More potential home owners are
switching to the periphery areas for larger homes and a healthier lifestyle at more competitive rates
with a viable work-from home alternative,

VHFL'S PERFORMANCE REVIEW, FY 2023-24.

Income & Profits:-
The Financial Results for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 are briefly given below:-

2023-2024 2022-2023
PARTICULARS
[Rs.InHundred) | (Rs.In Hundred)
Total Income 2,85,628.01 2,31,950.33
Total Expenditure 2,64,37993

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 21,248.08
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Exceptional items - -
Extraordinary items - -
Profit / Loss before Tax 21,248.08 15,002.99
Provision for Taxation 5712.46 4,169.68
Profit after Tax 15,535.62 10,833.31
EPS (Basic & Diluted) 0.08 0.08

Operational Performance

Viva Home Finance Limited is a retail affordable housing finance company serving the low- and middle-
income self-employed & Salaried customers in the semi-urban and rural areas of India. The Company offers its
customers home loans for the purchase or construction of residential properties and the extension and repair of
existing housing units, Tn addition to home loans, the Company offered customers other mortgage backed
loans including loans against property.

Non-performing assets: The Company maintained its gross NPAs at Rs.92.89 Lakhs (4.61% of the loan assets)
as on March 31, 2024. The Company reviewed its delinquency and loan portfolio on a regular basis, The
Company confirmed to a defined policy with procedures to address delinquencies and collections. As a result,
Gross NPPA and Net NPA as at March 31, 2024 were 4.61% and 2.07 % respectively.

Capital Adequacy Ratio: The Company is required to maintain a Capital adequacy ratic of 15% from March
31, 2024, The Company’s capital adequacy ratio as of March 31, 2024 stood at 156.49 % as against 156.51% in the
previous financial year, which was far above the minimum required level of 15%.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(i) CRAR (%) 156.49% 156.51%

(ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%} 155.99% 155.99%

(iii) CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%} 0.50% 0.52%

(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- Il Capital NIL NIL

(v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments NL NIL

Internal Control System and their adequacy

The internal financial confrol of VHFL over financial reporting is a process that is designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of Financial Statements for external
purposes in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting consists of the policies and procedures:

1} Pertaining to maintenance of the records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company

2) Providing reasonable assurance that
preparation of Financial Statements acgy
the receipts and expenditures of the §
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management and Directors of the Company, and

3) Providing reasonable assurance to prevent or timely detect unauthorised acquisition, use or disposition
of the Company’s assets which may have a material effect on the financial statements. The Company has
a robust intemal audit programme, where the internal anditors, an independent firm of Chartered
Accountants, conduct a riskbased audit to not only test the adherence to policies and procedures but to
also suggest improvements in the processes and systems. The audit program is agreed upon by the Audit
Committee. Internal audit observations and recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee,
which monitors the implementation of such recommendations.

COUTIONARY STATEMENT

This statement describes the objectives, projections, expectation and estimations of the Company, which may be
"forward- looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Forward- looking
statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee
that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised by the Company. The actual result may
differ materially from those expressed in the statement or implied due to the influence of the external factors,
which are beyond the Company’s control. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or
revise any forward- looking statements on the basis of any subsequent developments.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

For Viva Home Finance Limited

Place: Virar Om Parkashflua

Date: 29" April 2024 Manpaging Director

[DIN-03645948]
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT
To,

The Members,
Viva Home Finance Limited

The Board of Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting before you the 13t
Annual Report on the operational and business performance, along with Audited Financial

Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial Results for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 are briefly given below:-

2023-2024 2022-2023
PARTICULARS (Rs.In (Rs.In
Hundred) Hundred}
Total Income 2,85,628.01 2,331,950.33
Total Expenditure 2,64,379.93 216,947.34
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary 21,248.08 15,002.99
items and tax
Exceptional items - -
Extraordinary items - -
Profit / Loss before Tax o 21,248.08 15,002.99
Provision for Taxation 571246 4,169.68
Profit after Tax 15,535.62 10,833.31
EPS (Basic & Diluted) 0.08 0.08

WORKING OF THE COMPANY

The Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank
(NHB) and now regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Your Company is engaged in
the primary bu$iness of providing a range of Home Loans and Home Improvement Loans,
Loan Against Property to customers,

DIVIDEND

To conserve resources which would assist in future growth of the company, no dividend is
recommended by the Board for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any dep051ts in terms of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (A
Rules, 2014. During the year, no amounts were outstanding
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‘Deposits’ under the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and hence, the
requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which are not in compliance with the
Chapter V of the Companies Art, 2013 is not applicable,

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, your Company has not transferred any amount to General
Reserve and Rs.3,06,253/ - is transferred to the Statutory Reserve as per Section 29 C of NHB
Act, 1987 out of the amount available in the Statement of Profit and Loss during FY 2023-
2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the company is Rs. Rs.30,00,00,000/- and the paid up share
capital of the company is Rs. 18,70,00,000 /-.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting
rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity.

The Company has not made any purchase or provision of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees during the financial year 2023-2024.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit (IA) function is to
maintain its objectivity and independence. Based on the report of Internal Audit function,
process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen
the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to
the Audit Committee of the Board.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT o
Sustainability has been deeply embedded into the Company’s business and has become an

integral part of its decision making process while considering social, economic and
environmental dimensions.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS AND PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCY

Your Company Ensured Compliance with RBI Master Circular on Assets Classification and
Provisioning pertaining to advances -Classifications dated 12 November 2021, in relation to
identification, up-gradation and provisioning of non-performing assets (NPA).
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Your Company has made adequate provision for the assets on which instalments are
overdue for more than 90 days and on other assets, as required.

RECOVERY & COLLECTIONS

The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security
Interest Act 2002 (SARFAESI Act) had proved to be a useful recovery tool and the Company
had been able to successfully initiate recovery action under the provisions of this Act,
against the defaulting borrowers but due to amendment notified by Government of India
and in turn revised directions of Reserve Bank of India, the Company has stopped initiating
any recovery action under SARFAESI Act, afresh. However recovery through sending
demand notices to the defaulters and regular followup through personal visits has been
intensified to ensure recovery of overdue amount and reduce the level of stressed assets.

In order to prevent frauds in loan cases by mortgaging the same property with multiple
lenders, the Government of India has set up Central Registry of Securitization Asset
Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) under Section 20 of the SARFAESI
Act. Your Company has been filing requisite particulars of Mortgaged Properties with
CERSALI as per the prevailing guidelines issued by CERSALI, besides Notice of Intimation
also sent to respective Sub-registrar for registering our charge over the mortgage property.

The Company, in eligible NPA Accounts is also filing legal cases under section 138 of the
Indian Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Your Company is in the business of lending to individuals & small builders clients on
secured basis. The Company faces various risks in its scale of operations. The Company has
in place a Risk Management Framework so that risks that the Company faces are identified,
controlled and priced in a mamner that the Company can continue its operations in a
profitable and sustainable manner. The Company places significant emphasis on the
adequacy of management of risk and the Risk Management Framework is set to outline the
approach towards risk and the process of oversight and management of the risks. Sound risk
management systems would enable the Company to take risks knowingly, reduce risks
where appropriate and strive to prepare for a-future, which by its nature cannot be predicted
with absolute certainty. Risk Management is a discipline at the core of our operations and
encompasses all activities that affect its risk profile. The Risk Management Framework seeks
to lay down the broad contours under which risks would be managed and controlled. Your
Company follows the best practice for Management of Credit Risk, Market Risk and
Operational Risk and has put in place a comprehensive Risk Management Policy envisaging
a robust Risk Management programme.

Your Company has in place a Risk Management Policy for identification, assessment,
measurement and reporting of business risks faced by the Company. The Risk Management
Committee oversees the Risk Management framework on a periodic basis. Risk Control and
Mitigation mechanisms are tested for their effectiveness on regular intervals,
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN - [CLAUSE (A) OF SECTION 134 (3)]

The Details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 in accordance
with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Company (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, are set out herewith as Annexure I to this report and the same
is available on website of the company i.e www.vhflin.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: [CLAUSE (B) OF SECTION 134(3]]

During the financial year 2023-2024 Ten (10} Board Meetings were convened and held.
Proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the
Minutes Book as required by the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act and
table showing details of Board Meetings is attached by way of Annexure II to this Report.
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has an adequately qualified and experienced Audit Committee. As on 31st
March, 2024, the Audit Committee comprised of One Independent Director. The Committee
comprises of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil (Independent Director), Mr. Omprakash Dua
(Managing Director), Mr. Rohil Thakur Executive Non-Independent Director.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:

a) To recommend appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors and
Internal Auditors of the Company;

b) To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

¢) To examine the quarterly and annual financial statements and the Auditor’s Report thereon;
d) To approve or subsequently modify transactions of the Company with Related Parties;

e} To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments;

f} To undertake valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
g) To evaluate Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems;

h) To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

i) To formulate the scope, functioning, periodicity, and methodology for conducting the Internal
Audit, in consultation with the Internal Auditor;

j) To discharge from time to time such other acts, duties, and functions as may be assigned by
the Board of Directors or prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other applicable law
and Rules made thereunder.

The Audit Committee met 4 times during the year under consideration on 23/05/2023,
26/07/2023,20/10/2023 & 23/01/2024.
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The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year
under consideration. The Chairman of the Board, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer,
Internal Auditor, and Statutory Auditors are regularly invited to attend the Audit Committee
Meetings.

(b) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As on 31st March, 2024, the Risk Management Commitiee of the Board of Directors
comprised of Three Members comprises of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Govil (Independent Director),
Mr. Omprakash Dua (Managing Director), Mr. Rohil Thakur, Executive Director. The
Committee met Four times during the year under consideration on 23/05/2023,
26/07/2023,20/10/2023 &23/01/2024.

{c) ALCO COMMITTEE

As on 31st March, 2024, the ALCO Committee of the Board of Directors comprised of Three
Members comprises of Mr. Om Prakash Dua (Chairman and Managing Director), Mr.
Dinesh Kumar Govil (Independent Director) & Mr. Rohil Thakur , Executive Director. The

Committee met Four times during the year under consideration on 23/05/2023,
26/07/2023,20/10/2023 & 23/01/2024.

10
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DIRECT X PONSIBILITY STATEMENT [CLAUSE (C) OF SECTION 134(3

Directors’ Responsibility Statement prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013, is furnished below as required under Section 134(3)(c).

Directors state :-

a) that while preparing the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures.

b} that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 31st
March,2024 and of the Profit of the Company for that year.

c} that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

d) thatthe Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all appllcable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

f) that Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
were in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company today is a valued employer brand with a compelling employee value
proposition. Your Company consistently focuses on talent acquisition and retention to
ensure sustainable growth. Your Company’s initiatives are aligned with its overall mission
and strategy. It has adopted new technologies and has implemented employee-centric
policies and practices to strike a balance between business needs and individual aspirations.
Your Company’s Human Resources initiatives and L&D system are designed to ensure an
active employee engagement process, leading to better organizational capablhty and vitality
for maintaining a competitive edge and in pursuing its ambitious growth plans. -

REGULATORY & STATUTORY COMPLIANCES

During the year under review, the NHB/RBI has issued various guidelines to Housing
Finance Companies. The updates on the guidelines are placed before the Board of Directors
at regular intervals. The Company has put in place adequate systems and processes in place
to ensure compliance with the applicable guidelines issued by NHB/RBI/ other regulators.
RDBI issued Masler Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance
Companies Directions, 2021 on February 17, 2021 & updated till 150 December 2023, The
Company has implemented the aforesaid\ Master Directions.

During the year, no penalty was imposed on the Company by any of the

11
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ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (ALCO)

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) lays down policies and quantitative
limits that involve assessment of various types of risks and shifts in assets and liabilities to
manage such risks. ALCO ensures that the liquidity and interest-rate risks are contained
within the limits laid down by the Board. The Company has duly implemented the NHB's
Asset Liability Management Guidelines.

FAIR PRACTICE CODE

Your Company has in place a Fair Practice Code (FPC), which includes guidelines on
appropriate staff conduct when dealing with the customers and on the organization’s
policies vis-a-vis client protection. The FPC captures the spirit of the National Housing Bank
guidelines on fair practices for Housing Finance Companies. Your Company and its
employees duly comply with the provisions of FPC.

CODES AND POLICIES & COMPLIANCES

Your Company has formulated various Policies and Codes in compliance with provisions of
Directions and Guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank (NHB), Companies Act,
2013, other applicable laws to ensure high ethical standards in the overall functioning of the
organization. The Policies and Codes are periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India {(Indian GAAP) and comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and the relevant provisions of the Act and the
Guidelines issued by National Housing Bank.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has established a
Vigil Mechanism for Directors and Employees to report their genuine concerns.

.As per the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company, Employees are free to report illegal or
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Codes of
Conduct or any improper activity, to the Chairman of ‘the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors or Chairman of the Company.

Under the Whistle Blower Policy, confidentiality of those reporting violation(s) is protected
and they are not subjected to any discriminator stices. No personnel have been denied
access to the Audit Committee.

12
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND SECRETARIAL
STANDARD 2

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. S5-1 and SS-2, relating to “Meetings of the Board of
Directors” and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by your Company.

DECLARATIONS GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors confirming that he
fulfil the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

EXPLANATION / COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK,
OR DISCLAIMER, IF ANY, MADE BY THE AUDITOR OR COST AUDITOR OR SECRETARIAL

AUDITOR [CLAUSE (F) OF SECTION 134(3]]

Statutory Auditors have not put any qualification or adverse remark in their Report. The
appointment of Cost Auditor and Secretarial Auditor and obtaining their Report is not
applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186. [CLAUSE
(G) OF SECTION 134(3}]

The Details of Loan, Guarantee and Investment under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

1. Loans Provided: Company has provided Loan of Rs.22.00 Lac to Managing Director,
outstanding balance as on 31st March 2024 was Rs.11.50 Lac. Loan given under Staff
Loan Scheme.

2. Guarantees Given: Company has not given any Guarantee.
3. Details of investment in Equity Shares made by the Company as on 31st March, 2024
(including investment made in the previous years) in Quoted and Unquoted

Securities is mentioned in Notes to Accounts.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED
. TOIN SECTION 188(1) IN FORM AOC-2 [CLAUSE (H) OF SECTION 134(3)]

‘Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, -2013, the particulars of contracts or
arrangements entered into by the Company with Related parties have been done at Arm’s
length basis and are in ordinary course of business. The further Disclosures relating to
Related Parties are set out herewith as Annexure III to this Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS [CLAUSE (i) OF SECTION
134(3]]

The Company has earned the Profit before Tax of Rs. 21,24,808/- as against the Profit before
Tax of Rs. 15,00,299/ - of the previous year.
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MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS, IF ANY [CLAUSE (L) OF SECTION 134 (3)]

No material changes took place, nor were any commitments made by the Board affecting the
financial position of the Company between the closures of this Financial Year under Report
till the date of this Report.

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134 (3) (M):

A. Conservation of Energy:

Rs. Nil/-

B. Technology absorption:

Rs. Nil/-

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings: Rs. Nil/-
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Rs. Nil/-

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY [CLAUSE (N) OF SECTION
134(3)]

Your Company is committed to manage its risk in a proactive manner and has adopted a
structured and disciplined approach to risk management by developing and implementing
risk management framework. With a view to manage its risk effectively your Company has
in place a Comprehensive Risk Management Policy which covers a formalized Risk
Management Structure, alongwith other aspects of Risk Management ie. Credit Risk
Management, Operational Risk Management, Market Risk Management and Enterprise Risk
Management. During the financial year under review, the risk management policy of the
Company was revised to align the same with the changing business environment.

DETAILS OF CSR (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY) POLICY DEVELOPED BY THE
COMPANY AND INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR [CLAUSE (0) OF SECTION 134(3)]

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of CSR activities are not

applicable to the Company: The Company voluntarily also has not undertaken-any CSR
activity.

TA INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS
BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES

AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: [CLAUSE (P) OF SECTION 134(3]]

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has carried
out an annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees as well as
performance of Directors individually.

Well-defined and structured questionnaires were used in the evaluation process, covering
various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of composition of the Board and
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duties, obligations, governance and compliance perspective. Evaluation was carried out
based on feedback received from Directors.

A separate exercise was carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to
evaluate performance of individual Directors. Performance evaluation of Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the Director being evaluated.
Performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and the Board, as a whole, was
carried out by Independent Directors. Performance evaluation of the Chairman was carried
out by Independent Directors. Directors have expressed satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

THE MATTERS PRESCRIBED UNDER RULE 8 (5) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014:

(i) The financial summary or highlights:
During the year under review the Net Revenue from Operations of the

Company was Rs.2,85,62,801/- as against Rs. 2,31,95,033/- of the previous
year. The other details are enumerated in Para No 1 above.

(ii) The changes in the nature of business, if any;
There is no such change in the Nature of the Business of the Company.

(iii) The changes among the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel during the
year:

Directors:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 152(2) and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Awadhesh Kumar Dixit (DIN 07575417) was
appointed as Whole Time Director of the company with effect from 1st
September 2023 for a period of five years.

Key Managerial Personnel:

During the year under report, Mr. Awadhesh Kumar Dixt (DIN 07575417) was
appointed as Whole Time Director of the Company with effect from lst
September 2023 for a period of five years.

(iv) The names of the companies which have become or ceased to be its
Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associates during the year;

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, Joint Venture or Associate Companies.
(v)  The details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act in
following form:

(a) Accepted during the year :- Rs. Nil

(b) Remained unclaimed or unpaid as at the end of the year -:- Rs. Nil
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{c) Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest
thereon during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total amount

involved

(i) Atthe beginning of Rs. Nil
(ii) Maximum during the year Rs. Nil
(iii) At the end of the year Rs. Nil

(vi)  The details of Deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements
of Chapter V of the Act:

Rs. Nil

(vii) The details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future:

There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the going concern status of your Company and its
operations in future.

(viii) The details in respect of adequacy of Imternal Financial Controls with
reference to Financial Statements:

The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Control with reference to
Financial Statements. The Management periodically reviews the financial
performance of the Company against the approved plans.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: (RULE 5(2) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT &
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL), RULES, 2014,

None of employee in the Company who is in receipt of remuneration aggregating to
Rs. 102.00 Lacs or more per year or Rs.8.50 Lacs or more per month when employed for a
part of the year and the particulars as required under (Rule 5(2) Of Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014.

-~

" OTHER MATTERS:

(a) Annexure: - Annexure I to III attached to this Report form an integral part of this Report.
Also attached are the Reports from Statutory Auditors.

(b) Registers, Records and Books of Accounts in Electronic Format: -

The Board has passed a resolution approving maintenance of all statutory registers, records
and books of accounts, as necessary and required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
made there under in electronic format with effect from 01.04.2014 Accordingly the Board has
updated these Registers as per the provisions of Companies

16



(c) Disclosure of Interest by Directors: -

All Directors have disclosed their concern or interests in other company/ies, body, firms,
association of individuals including shareholding and necessary forms have been taken on
record by the Board of Directors.

(d) Statutory Auditors:-

M/s. Devpura Navlakha & Co. Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 121975W),
Statutory Auditors of the Company were appointed at the 12th Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 21* August 2023 for a period of one year till the conclusion of 13"
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial year ending 31* March
2024.

Audit Report issued by M/s. Devpura Navlakha & Co., Statutory Auditors of the Company
does not contain any qualifications or observations or remarks in their Report. As per Section
134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board states that during the year under review,
there are no adverse comments or disqualifications made by the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, during the course of their audit.

On the basis of recommendations from the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at their
Meeting held on 4th March 2024 recommended the reappointment of Ms/ Devpura
Navlakha & Co. Mumbai, (Firm Registration No.121975W), Chartered Accountants, as the
statutory auditors of the company, for the term of 1 year from the conclusion of 13th Annual
General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the 14th Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held for the financial year ending 31st March, 2025, subject to the
approval of the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and subject to regulatory
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, National Housing Bank and Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

M/s. Ms/ Devpura Navlakha & Co. Mumbai, (Firm Registration No.121975W), have given
their consent and furnished a certificate of their eligibility for being appointed as the
Auditors of the Company, as required under the provisions of Section 139(1) and 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

APPRECIATION
" "Your Directors wish to express their gratitude to the Bankers of the Company, for the timely

- all cooperation by them. Directors also Place on record their sincere appreciation for the
contribution made by the employees of the Company at all levels.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Viva Home Finance Limite

\

Om Parkash-Dua
Managing Director
[DIN-03645948]

Place: Virar
Date: 29" April 2024
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ANNEXURE-1

FORM NO.MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

L Registration & Other Detalls

1.| CIN U65923MH2011PLC224883

2.| Registration Date 14th December,2011

3.| Name of the Company Viva Home Finance Limited

4.| Category/Sub-category | Company Limited by Shares / Indian Non-Government
of the Company Company

5.| Address of the | Thakur Arcade, 2nd Floor, Opp. Railway Station, Virar (West),
Registered office & | Palghar - 401303
contact details E-mail ID :- vhfl@vhilin

Phone No: +91 7719085333

6.| Whether listed company | No

7. | Name, address and N. A.
contact details of
Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

1L Principal Business Activities of the Company (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)
S.No. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company
1. Financial Service {Home Loan to 9971 100

against Property)

Individuals & Small Builders
and Mortgage Loan i.e Loan

1II. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

The Company is not having any Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Company. Thus this Clause is
not applicable.
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V.

Equity)

A)

Category-Wise Share Holding

Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year [As on 1st April-2023]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year [As on

31st March-2024]

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

%.of
Total
Shares

%
Chang

durin

the
year

A, Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual /
HUF

50,000

50,000

0.36

50,000

50,000

0.27

-0.09

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

¢) Banks / FI

f) Any other
(Partnership
Firm through
its partners)

1,36,50,000

1,36,50,000

99.64

1,86,5,0000

1,86,50,000

99.73

+0.09

Total
shareholding
of Promoter

(A)

1,37,00,000

1,37,00,000

100.00

1,87,00,000

1,87,00,000

100.00

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i} Others
(specify)

Sub-total
{B)(1):-

2.Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.
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i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i} Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto Rs.
1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

¢) Others

(HUF)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate
RBodies

Foreign
Nationals

Clearing
Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies
-DR

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

1,37,00,000

1,37,00,000

1,87,00,000

1,87,00,000

100.00

20




Vi=iF

Wiva HOME FiIMNAMCOE

B) Shareholding of Promoters-

Sr. | Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the % change
No Name vear End of the year in
No. of shares | % of total % of No.of shares | 9% of total %of Shares Shareholdi
Shares of Shares Shares of Pledged / ng during
the Pledged the encumbered the year
Company / company | to total shares
encumbe
red to
total
shares
1 M/s Viva 1,36,50,000 99.64 - 1,86,50,000 99.73 - -
Holdings
2 Mr, Mehul 11,250 0.08 - 11,250 0.06 - -
Deepak
Thakur
3 Mr. Rohil 7,500 0.05 - 7,500 0.04 - -
Jayendra
Thakur
4 Mr. 11,250 0.08 - 11,250 0.06 - .
Siddhartha
Deepak
Thakur
5 Mr. Rohan 7,500 0.05 - 7,500 0.04 - -
Jayendra
Thakur
6 Ms. Privanka 7,500 0.05 - 7,500 0.04 - -
Jayendra
Thakur
TOTAL | 1,36,95,000 99,96 - 1,86,95,000 99.97 - -
C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
During the Financial Year 2023-2024, one of the promoters, M/s Viva Holdings have allotted at
par 50,00,000 Equity Shares (Private Placement) of Rs.10/- each aggregating Rs. 5,00,00,000/-.
D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding at the Cumulative
Particulars beginning of the year Shareholding during the
-l ~ . year
Sr. | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares | % of total No. of %% of total
Neo. | ° ’ shares of shares shares of
the the
Company company
1 At the beginning of the year - - - -
2 Date wise Increase/ decrease in shareholding during the - - - -
year specifying the reasons for increase/ deercase (e.g.
allotment / transfer/ bonus/ sweat equity etc)
3 At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, if - - - -

separated during the year)
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E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

SN | Name of Director and Key Managerial | Shareholding as at the | Shareholding as at the
Personnel beginning of the year End of the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the | shares shares of
company the
company
1. | Mr. Rohil Jayendra Thakur 7,500 0.05 7,500 0.03

V) Indebtedness -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due

for payment. (Amount in Rs)
Secured Loans
excluding tl:asﬁ:ured Deposits ;[:;::Jtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL
ii} Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i+i+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL
* Reduction NIL NIL NIL NIL
Net Change NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL
i) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii} Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (1+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
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VL.

Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Amount in Rs)

Sr.
No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of MD

Name of Whole
Time Director

Total Amount

Mr. Omprakash Dua
(Managing Director)

Mr. Awadhesh
Kumar Dixit

Gross salary

60,00,000/-

21,00,000/-

81,00,000/-

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the [ncome-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) of Income-tax Act,
1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under Section 17(3) of
Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

P8

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

Others, Bonus

5,00,000/-

5,00,000/-

Total:

65,00,000/-

21,00,000/-

8610 010 00 / -

B. Remuneration to other directors:

1. Independent Director

Sr. No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Govil

Mr. Dinesh Kumar

Total Amount

Fee for attending board /
committee meetings

Commission

-

- Others, Remunaration

3,00,000/-

3,60,000/-

Total (B}(1)

3,00,000/-

3,00,000/- |

Ceiling as per the Act

1,00,000 per meeting
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2. Other Director

Particulars of Remuneration
Sl. No Total

Amount

Fee for attending board / committee meetings

Commission

- Others, please specify

Total (B)(2) sl

Total (B)= (B)(1)+ (B){2) 3,00,000/-

Ceiling as per the Act 1,00,000 per meeting

VIL Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:

During the Financial Year, there is no instant of any Penalty/ Punishment / Compounding of
Offences under Companies Act, 2013, National Housing Bank Act and against any Director, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Officer in Default.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Viva Home Finance Limited

Place: Virar \ Om Parkasl
Date: 29™ April 2024 .‘._),:' Managin 1rector
/] [DIN-03645948]
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Annexure Il

Table showing Board Meetings during F.Y. 2023-2024 and its attendance

Sr. Date of Board Number of Number of directors % of
No. | Meeting Directors on who attended the attendance
the date of Board Meeting
Board Meeting -
1 | 23-05-2023 3 3 100
2 | 12-06-2023 3 3 100
3 | 20-06-2023 3 3 100
4 | 20-07-2023 3 3 100
5 |20-09-2023 4 4 100
6 | 03-10-2023 4 4 100
7 | 31-10-2023 4 4 100
8 |01-12-2023 4 4 100
9 | 20-12-2023 4 4 100
10 | 04-03-2024 4 4 100
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Annexure I1I

FORM NO.AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transaction under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL | Name (s) of | Nature of Duration | Salient Justificatio | Date of | Amount | Date on which
No | the related | contracts/arra | of the | terms of the [ n for | approv | paid as | the special
party & | ngements/tra | contracts | contracts or | entering al by | advanc | resolution was
nature of | nsaction /arrange | arrangement | into such | the es, if | passed in
relationship ments/tr | s or | confracts | Board any General
ansaction | transaction | or meeting as
including arrangeme required under
the value, if | nts or first proviso to
any transactio section 188
ns’
NIL
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis
SL | Name (s) of the | Nature  of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the | Date of Amount
No | related party & | contracts/ar | contracts/arrang | contracts or arrangements | approval by the | paid as
nature of | rangements | ements/transact | or transaction including the | Board advance
relationship /transaction | ion value, if any s, if any
1 Viva  Winner | Term Loan | 36 Months Term Loan Rs.2.00 Crore | 20th June 2023 | NIL
Veture Realtors | Rs.2.00 given fur completion of
LLP Crore Project. Loan given is well

within RBI Master
Directions 2021 for HFCs.
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DEVPURA NAVLAKHA & CO

Chartered Accountants
13, Timothy Building, 75, $.8. Gaikwad Marg, Opp. Metro Cinema, Mumbai— 400002
Mobile No. 9821155830, Email:- pkdevpura@rediffmail.com, pkdevpura@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members,

VIVA HOME FINANCE LIMITED
VIRAR, Dist. Palghar

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements as on 31*t March 2024
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of VIVA HOME FINANCE LIMITED which
comprise the Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended, and summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315 March 2024, its profit and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters %irg those matters that, in our professional judgment, wefe of most significance in our
audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Other Information
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the
Financial Statements and our Auditors' Report thereon.
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Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, if,
based on the work we have performed. We conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibllity for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements, that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, financial performance and cash flows of
the company in accordance with the Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 {(as amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate
the Company cor to cease operations, or has ne realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's Report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economlc decisions of users taken on the basis of
* these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. Ve also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management and the Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Financial Statements of the Company to
express an opinion on the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with reievant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

_ Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As per provision of the Companies Act, 2013 Section 197(3) of the Act was amended by the Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2020, wherein a company having no profits or inadequate profits, can pay Managerial
Remuneration any sum in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V to the Act, 2020, on
recommendation of the Board of Directors at their respective meeting held on 12th January, 2024, the
approval of the Company in the Extra Ordinary Meeting dated 2nd March 2024 to increasing of Managerial
Remuneration of the Company upto Rs. 1,15,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Fifteen Lacs) Per Annum with
effect from 1st April, 2023.
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As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

1.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of such books.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report is in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement complies
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014 (as amended);

On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act;

We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCOFR) of the Company
as of 31° March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date and our report dated 29™ April 2024 as per Annexure Il expressed unmodified
opinion;

With respect to the other matters o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i. the Company, as detailed in Note 23 to the Financial Statements, has made provision, as
required under the Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010, on the Housing and
Non-housing loans; and did not have any other long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

> o

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (the ultimate Beneficiaries)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding




whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Management
representations under sub- clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

9. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

10. The Company is using Tally Software to maintain its Books of Accounts since its inception and as such
reporting under Section 143(3)(i) Clause (g} of Rule 11 (Rule11(G)) is applicable. The software used
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and same has been operated throughout the year
for all transactions recorded in the software. The audit trail feature has not been tampered with and
the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as record retention.

For Devpura Navlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121975W

Pramod Kumar Devpura
Partner
Membership No. 033342

UDIN: 240233423 ZZ TN 11ég

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29" April 2024

31



Annexure i to Independent Auditors’ Report (Referred to in para 1 under the heading “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to

VIVA HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Financial
Statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us
and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best
of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

1) a} A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of use assets have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of physical verification program adopted by the Company is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

¢) According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the company does not have any

immovable property, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i}(c} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets or
intangible assets during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
Property under the Benami Transactions {(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

2) a) The Company is engaged in financing activities which does not involve maintenance of any
inventory. Thus paragraph 3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable tc the Company.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by Banks or Financial Institutions on
the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ii)}(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

3) (a) The Company is a Housing Finance Company and its Principal Business is to give loans.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted any advances in
the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has granted loans and made certain

~ Jnvestments and in our opinion, and according to the. information and explanations given to us, the
loans and investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) The Company is a Housing Finance Company (‘HFC"), registered under provisions of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987 and rules made thereunder and is regulated by various regulations, circulars
and norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India including Master Circular — Prudential norms on
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances. In respect of joans
and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, we report that the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and
interest are regular except for certain instances as below:
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4)

S)

" 6)

Particulars — Total amount No. of Cases

Days past due due(Rs. in
Lakhs)
1-29 days 3.24 20
30-59 days 247 7
60-89 days 216 5
90 or more days 92.89 21
Total 100.76 53 B

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the total amount which is overdue for
more than 80 days in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans given in course of the
business operations of the Company aggregates to Rs.92.89 Lakhs as at 31 March 2024 in respect of
21 number of loans. Further, reasonable steps as per the Policies and Procedures of the Company
have been taken for recovery of such principal and interest amounts overdue.

(e) The Company is a Housing Finance Company and its Principal Business is to give loans.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)}{e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) In addition to loans granted as part of its principal business having repayment schedule, the Company
has granted loan which is repayable on demand, as per details below (Rs. in lakhs):

Particulars All Promoters Related
Parties Parties
Aggregate of loansfadvances in nature of loan 12.03 NA 11.50
- Repayable on demand (A) - NA NA
- Agreement does not specify any terms or 12.03 NA 11.50
pericd ofrepayment {(B) o
Total (A+B) . . . 12.03 NA 11.50
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loan to 0.60% NA 0.57%

thetotal loans

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of Loans, Investments,
Guarantees and Security, as applicable.

The provisions of the sections 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), are not applicable to the Company being a
Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank, and also the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed
deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

‘The Central Government has not specified mainfénance of cost records under sub-section (1) of

. section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting under

7

clause 3({vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the
Company, though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to
in subclause {a} above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

8) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

9) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

{b}According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received from
Banks/ Financial Institution and representation received from the Management of the Company,
and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other lender.

(c}In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given te us, company has not
raised money by way of term loans during the year.

{(d)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e)According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
Financial Statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year of pledge of Securities.

10) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x){(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{b) During the year, the Company has made private placement of 50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10
each issued at par & same are fully paid-up.

11) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company, one material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

12) {b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

13) (c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the Management of the Company, there are no whistle- blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

14) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

15) In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc.,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

16) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an
internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

17) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of
section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
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18} (a) The Company is a Housing Finance Company having a valid Certificate of Registration under Section
29A of the NHB Act, 1987 and is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 in terms of exemption granted under Master Direction - Exemptions from the provisions of
RBI Act, 1934 dated 25 August 2016 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b}
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

19) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

20) Based on the information and explanations given lo us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any Core Investment Company as part of the Group.

21) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding financial
year.

22) There has been Cessation of Statutory Auditors & again reappointment of the same Statutory Auditors i.e
M/s. Devpura Navlakha & Co. during the year.

23) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

24) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount pertaining to any
ongoing projects as at end of the current financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not any ongoing project, hence transferred the remaining unspent amount under
sub-section (5} of section 135 of the Act, in respect of any ongoing project, within a period of 30 days from
the end of financial year to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (8) of section
135 of the Act not applicable. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

25) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Thus, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Devpura Navlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121975W » . ..

EWH(\N»Q A

Pramod Kumar Devpura
Partner
Membership No. 033342

UDIN: 240233342 @ 2ZIN 6]
Place: Mumbai
Date: 29™ April 2024

MUMBALI
121975W
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Annexure Il to Independent Auditors’ Report (Referred to in para 1 under the heading “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to

VIVA HOME FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VIVA HOME FINANCE LIMITED
{(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtainiry an understanding of internal financial controls
over.financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and
Directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31%t, 2024,
based on the intenal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For Devpura Navlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 121975W

m\w&w

Pramod Kumar Devpura
Partner
Membership No. 033342

UDIN. 2462233428322 TN 1I6E

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29" April 2024
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Viva Home Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

As At As At
Particulars Note 31t March 2024 31st March 2023
Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholder's Funds

Share Capital 3 18,70,000.00 13,70,000.00
Reserves and Surplus 4 2,05,788.38 1,90,252.75
Long term Borrowings 5 = =
Long term Provision 6 1,32,049.24 1,36,420.69
Contingent Provision against Std. Assets 7 6,600.00 5,210.05
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 8 261266 1,760.26
Other Current Liabilities @ 782,13 311258
Short-Term Provision 10 11,986.00 10,957.10

Total 22,29,818.41 17,17,71343
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets 11 16,331.06 19,730.32
Tangible Assets
Long Term Loans & Advances- Housing Loans 12 15,20,000.91 10,10,811.84
Long Term Loans & Advances- Others 13 4,95,726.56 4,38,869.16
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 14 174.72 420.66
Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 15 1,77,342.21 2,14,216.33
Other Short Term Loans & Advances 16 4,550.00 19,500.00
Other Current Assets 17 15,692.95 14,165.12
Total 22,29,818.41 17,17,713.43

Significant Accounting Policies 2
Notes on Financial Statements 1
As per our Report of even date

For Devpura Navlakha & Co oo For Viva Home Finance Ltd. st

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg, No.: 121975W

Pramod Kumar Devpura Om D

Partner Mana ector

Mem. No. 033342 DIN.: 03645948

Date: 29 April 2024




Viva Home Finance Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note 31= March 2024 31st March 2023
Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred

Income:
[ncome from Operations 18 2,73,144.23 2,21,769.01
Other Income 19 12,483.78 10,181.32

Total 2,85,628.01 2,31,950.33
Expenses;
Employee Benefit Expenses 20 1,91,762.82 1,21,816.18
Other Administrative Expenses 21 82,355.54 36,895.77
Finance Cost 22 = =
Contingent Provision against Standard & Sub-Standard Assets 23 (13,642.66) 55,136.11
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 24 3,904.23 3,099.28

Total 2,64,379.93 2,16,947.34
Profit Before Tax 21,248.08 15,002,99
Tax Expenses
Current tax 5,466.52 3,900.78
Deferred tax 245,94 268.90
Profit/(Loss) for the year 15,535.62 10,833.31
Earning per equity share of face value of Rs.10 each
Basic & Diluted (in Rs.) 0.08 0.08
Significant Accounting Policies 2
Notes on Financial Statements 1
As per our Report of even date
For Devpura Navlakha & Co For Viva Home Finance Ltd.
Charlered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.; 121975W _
COWR N W ;1/4-5 =z

Pramod Kumar Devpura Om Pr Awadhesh Kuimar Dixdt
Partner Managi irector Whole-time Director
Mem. No. 033342 DI DIN: 07575417
UDIN: a-qogg,zulé‘ MBI\ 6 &
\E\ 121975W ) * F IN 4
\ﬁ e& Place: Virar m’x’
20 ace m))
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Yiva Home Finance Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 310 March, 2024

Particulars

Cwrrent Year (Rs. In Hundred)

Previous Year (Rs. In Hundred)

A. Cash flotw from opesating activities
Net Profit / {Loss) before extraordinary items and tax

Adinstiments for:

Finance Cost

Depreciation and amortization

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes
vk aprital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operaling nssets:

Chisges iy

Inventories

Trade receivables

Short-term loans and advances
Other current assets

Adjustments for ivcronse / {decrease} in operating Labilities:

Proceeds from short term borrowings
Other current liabilities

Long Term Provisions

Short- Term Provisions

Cash flow from extracrdinary items
Cash g d from operati

Net income tax {paid) / refunds
Net cash flow from f [used in) operating achivities (A}
B, Cash flow from investing getivitios

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Other Non Current Assels

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B}

C. Cash flow from financiug activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Proceeds fram shares application Money
Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Finance cost
Cash flow from extraordinary ilems
Net cash flow from / (used in} fimancing activities (C)

Met increase f {decrease} in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+0)
Cash and cash equivalenis Including FD at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash’e’qufva'lents Including FD at the end of the year

3,904.23

21,248.08

3.904.23

{5,66,046.46)
1342217

(1.476.04)
6,715.79
(8,668.39)

25,152.31

(5.56,054,94)

3,099.28

(130,445.17)
{4,346.45)

2,054,09
(23,098.25)
264.18

15.002.98

309928

18,102.26¢

(1,55,571.60)

(5,30,902.64)

571246
(536,615,100

{504.96)
24594

(256.02)

5.36,356.08

5.00.000.00

5,00,000.00

{19.818.79)
268.90

{1.37,469.34)

4,169.67

{141,639.01)

(19,5549.89)

1,61,183.90

5,00,000.00

(36,874,12)
2,14,216.33

1,77.542.21

{16,185.90)
3,75,405.23

2,14,116.33

As per our Report of even date
For Devpura Navlakha & Co
Chartered Acconatants

Firm Beg. No.: 1X1975W

Pramod Kumar Devpura
Parimer
Mem. No, 033342

UDIn: ').‘-IO 335(, 1R

For Viva Home Finance Lid,

Om P

Place: Virar Date; 29™ April 2024

lash Dxa

En aronit




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31°t March 2024.
1} Corporate Information

VIVA HOME FINANCE LIMITED was incorporated on 14" December, 2011 as a closely held public limited
company under the provisions of the indian Companies Act, 1956 with the objective to provide home loans,
particularly lower income group. The company has received certificate of registration to commence the
business of housing finance institution from National Housing Bank on 4th September 2013. Presently
VHFL is also extending credit Loan Against Property (LAP) as well as Project Loan within the ambit of
RBI/NHB guidelines.

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY:

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The Financial Statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention in
accordance with GAAP and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’} and comply to all material
aspects with the applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). All income and expenditure having a material
bearing on the Financial Statements are recognized on accrual basis. The company also follows the
directions pronounced by the National Housing Bank (NHB) for housing finance company. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied by the Company.

Summary of Significant accounting policies
a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with generaily accepted accounting principles
requires Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of Assets and
Liabilities, disclosure of Contingent Liabilities as at the date of Financial Statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Key estimates include estimates of useful
life of assets, provision for expenses, retirement benefits, provision on standard assets and income taxes.
Actual resuits could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates will be recognized
prospectively in the current and future periods.

b) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes inward freight,
duties, taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the assets upto the point
the assét is ready for its intended use. No fixed assets have been revalued duri ng the year.

c) Depreciation Accounting:

The Company has reviewed its policy of providing for depreciation on its fixed assets and has also
reassessed their usefu! lives as per Part C of Schedule |l of the Companies Act 2013. On and from April
1, 2014, the SLM method is being used to depreciate all classes of fixed assets based on the usefui life
as per the Companies Act 2013. The revised useful lives, as assessed by Management, match those
specified in Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, for all classes of assets. Individual assets
costing up to Rs.5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. i




d) Impairment of Assets:-

There are no indications which refiects that any of the assets of VHFL had got impaired from its potential
use and therefore no impairment loss was required to be accounted in the current year as per Accounting
Standard on ‘Impairment of Assets' (AS 28).

e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprises Cash in Hand and Time Deposits with Bank & balance in
current account with Banks.

f) Forelgn currency
The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company's
functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction.

During the Financlal Year Transactions In forelgn currencles are NiL.

) Revenue Recognition:

i} Interest on Loans:-

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis except in case of non-performing assets, where it is
recognized on receipt basis. In the case of individual housing loans/ Loan Against Propery, the repayment
is received by way of Equated Monthly Instaliments (“EMIs”) comprising principal and interest. Interest is
calculated on daily rest basis. Unless specifically approved, EMIs generally commence once the entire
loan s disbursed. Pending disbursal of the full loan amount, Pre-EMI interest is charged every month.

i) Processing Fees, Application and Other Charges Upfront / Processing fees or Application & Other
charges collected from the customers for processing loans are primarily towards documentation charges
and are accounted as income on receipt basis where recovery is uncertain.

i) Interest on Fixed Deposits:-

interest income on fixed deposits is accounted on time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable rate of interest.

h) Write-offs PO ~ .
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when there are very remote chances
of recovery in the Account. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss alldwance,
the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying
amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss Account.
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i} Investment

In accordance with Accounting Standard (AS 13) on “Accounting for Investments” and the guidelines
issued by the National Housing Bank, Investments are either classified as current or long term based on
the management’s intention at the time of purchase. On initial recognition, all investments are measured
at cost. The cost comprises of purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as
brokerage, fees and stamp duty.

Long term investments are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the value
of investments.

Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value.

j} Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets, representing Preliminary Expenses not w/written off., are recognized consistent with the
criteria specified in Accounting Standard- 26 “Intangible Assets” as prescribed by Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006.

k) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized
as a part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time
to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the Statement of
profit and loss.

1) Earnings per share:

The Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share have been computed in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS- 20) on, “Earnings Per Share” and is also shown in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

m) Statutory { Special Reserve:
The Company creates Statutory / Special Reserve every year out of its profits in terms of Sec 36(1) (viii)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 read with Sec 29C of {he Nalivnal Housing Bank Act, 1987,

n) Taxation:

Current taxation

- o

Provision for current tax is recogmzed based on the estimated tax liability computed after taklng credit for
allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

o) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to timing
differences between the Financial Statements carrying amounts of existing Assets and Liabilities and their
respective tax basis. Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax
rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet dates. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the enactment date. Where there
is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is




virtual certainty of realization of such assets supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized in future. Other deferred
tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty of realization in the future. Such
assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realization.

p) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provision are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on
Management estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

Provisions on Loans Assets will be made in accordance with the guidelines and Master directions issued
by RBI from time to time.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company.

Undisbursed amount as on 315 March 2024

In 12 loan accounts Rs.69,88,247/- has remained undisbursed as on 31%t March 2024, which has been

considered Sanctioned but part undisbursed amount, while calculating Adjusted value of Non-funded and Off-
Balance Sheet items.

q) Housing loans:-

Housing Loans represents outstanding amount of housing loans disbursed to individuals and others for
purchase or construction of residential property. These loans are bifurcated into Standard, Sub-standard,
Doubtful and Loss category based on the Guidelines and Master Directions issued by the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI).

r} Employee Benefits:-

Gratuity:

Gratuity is a post employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognized
in the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit /obligation at the
Balancg Sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial
gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefits / obligations are calculated at or near the
Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the
Profit and Loss Account in the year to which gains or losses relate.
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Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity benefits as per AS 15 (Revised 2005)

Funded Status of the Plan

Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023

Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hndred
Present value of unfunded obligations 19,476.01 8,043.86
Present value of funded obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Liability (Asset) 19,476.01 8,043.86
Effect in Profit & Loss Account for the current Period
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023

Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred

Current service cost 3,530.09 959.70
Interest on obligation 519.96 300.56
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net actuarial loss/(gain) 7,382.10 953.81
Past Service Cost-Vested - -
Past Service Cost-Unvested - =
Loss / (gain) on Curtailments and settlement - -
Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense’ 11,432.15 2,214.07
Expenses deducted from the fund - -
Prior year charge - -
Total Charge to P&L 11,432.15 2,214.07
Loss/(gain) on obligation 7,382.10 953.81
Loss/{gain) on assets - =
Net actuarial loss/(gain) 7,382.10
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Viva Home Finance Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 315t March, 2024

The previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to the

current year presentation.

Note: 3 Share Capital

The Company at present is only having one class of share capital i.e. Equity Share capital. The

requisite disclosure in respect of share capital is as under:

Particul 315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
culars Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

30,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00 each. 30,00,000.00 20,00,000.00

30,00,000.00 20,00,000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL

1,87,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10.00 each fully paid up 18,70,000.00 13,70,000.00

TOTAL 18,70,000.00 13,70,000.00

Reconciliation of number of share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period:

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March 2023
No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
year 1,37,00,000 1,37,00,000
Add: Equity Shares issued during the Period :
{Private Placement) 50,00,000 -
No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the close of the
period 1,87,00,000 1,37,00,000

Terms /Rights attached to Equity _Sh;u;gs

The Company is having one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs.10.00 each. Each Shareholder

is eligible for one vote per share held.

Details of each Shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares

[

Number of shares Number of shares
Name of the shareholder held as at held as at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
M/s Viva Holdings (Through its partners) 1,86,50,000 1,36,50,000
As % to Total Number of Equity Shares 99.73% 99.64%
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Note: 4 Reserve & Surplus

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Particulars Rs.In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
A) Special Reserve
Balance at the Beginning of the year
a. Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 33,754.84 31,588.17
b.  Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of NIL NIL
Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C
of the NHB Act, 1987
Total (a) | 33,754.84 31,588.17
Addition/ Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year :
Add:- '
a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 3,062.53 | 2,166.67
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii} of Income Tax Act, NIL | NIL
1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Less:-
a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NIL N
the NHB Act, 1987
b} Amount withdrawn from the special reserve ufs 36{1)(viii) NIL NIL
of Income Tax Act, 1961 which has been taken into account
for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987 ’ T 3,06253 T 2,166.67
Total (b) | —_— _
Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 36,817.37 33,754.84
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, NIL NIL
1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
36,817.37 33,754.84

A) Total (a+b)
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B) Profit and Loss Account

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add:- Profit during the Year

Less:- Excess Provision of Income Tax Last Year

Less:- Transfer to Special Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of NHB Act

B} Total
Total (A+B)

1,56,457.92
15,535.62
{(223.01}
{3062.53})

1,68,971.01
2,05,788.38

1,47,831.27
10,833.31

(2,166.66})

1,56,497.92
1,90,252.75

Note: - As per Section 29C(i) of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20%
of its net profit every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose, any Special Reserve created
by the Company under Section 36(1)(viii} of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is considered to be an eligible transfer.

Note: 5 Long Term Borrowing

Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31t March, 2023
Rs. In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
Secured Term Loan from Bank - -
TOTAL - -
Note: 6 Long Term Provisions

Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Rs, In Hundred | Rs.In Hundred

Long Term Provision on Loan Assets
Provision for Doubtul Assets 47,812.15 13,064.92
Provision for Sub-Standard Assets 4,421.40 56,686.93
Provision for Restructured Loan Assets 23,283.90 22,788.62
Provision for Restructured Loan Assets (Additional) 34,925.85 34,182.93
Provision for Gratuity 19,476.01 8,043.86
Proviston for Leave Encashment 1 2,129.93 1,653.43
1,32,049.24 1,36,420.69

NN
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Note: 7 Contingent Provision against Standard Assets

Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31t March, 2023
Rs. In Handred | Rs. In Hundred
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 6,600.00 5,210.05
TOTAL 6,600.00 5,210.05
Note: 8 Trade Payables
. 31¢t March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Particulars Rs. In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
a) Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 172.40 B
Enterprises '
b) Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises 2,440.26 1,760.26
c) Others - -
TOTAL 2,612.66 1,760.26

8. (a) Trade Payables Ageing Schedule:

(Rs. In Hundred)

Outstanding for following period from due
Unbilled date of Payment
More
Particulars Less than than 3
As at 31* March 2024 Dues Not Due | 1Yr. 1-2Yrs | 2-3 Yrs. | yrs. Total
1) MSME - 247.50 {75.10) - - - 172.40
2) Others -- - 2440.26 - - - 2440.26
3) Disputed Dues- MSME - -- - - - - --
4) Disputed Dues- Others = = o - - - -
{Rs. In Hundred)
~ Outstanding for fellowing period from due date
) Unbilled of Payment
Particulars Less than More than
As at 31 March 2023 Dues | NotDue | 1Yr. 1-2¥rs | 2-3Yrs., | 3yrs. Total
1) MSME = - - == - - -
2) Others - - 1760.26 - s - 1760.26
3) Disputed Dues- MSME - -- - - -- -~ -
4) Disputed Dues- Others - - - -- -- -- -

8. (b} There are amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 (the ‘"MSMED’) Pertaining To Micro or Samll Enterprises for the year ended March 31,

2024,
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Note: 9 Other Current Liabilities

. 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Particulars Rs. In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
Audit Fees Payable (Statutory Audit) 450.00 787 50
Duties & Taxes
332,13 2,325.08
TOTAL 782,13 3,112.58
Note: 10 Short Term Provisions
Particulars 31t March 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Rs. In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
11,986.00 10,957.10
Expenses Payable (Salary & Directors Remuneration)
TOTAL 11,986.00 10,957.10

“Provision for Gratuily & Leauve Encaslunent transfer to Long Term Provision during the year.

Note: 11 Fixed Assets

(Rs. In Hundred)

Description Gross Block Depreciation Net Block |
As at Addition| Deduction| Asat Upto For the Deduction Upto As at As at
01-4-2023 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2023 | Period 31-03-2024 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2023

Tangibles

Computer 10,873.38 | 628.15 - | 11,501.53 7,317.98 1,397.25 8,715.23 2,786.30 3,555.39

Furniture &

Fixture 7.808.53 — - 7.808.53 5,118.32 727.14 5,845.46 1,963.07 2,690.21

Motor Car 15,161.87 - 123.19 | 15,038.68 1,677.15 1,779.84 3,456.99 | 11,581.69 | 13,484.72

TOTAL | 33,843.78 | 628.15 123.19 | 34,348.74 | 14,113.45 3,904.23 - | 18,017.68 | 16,331.06 | 19,730.32

& .,
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Note :12 Loans and Advances - Housing Loans

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023 |

Particulars ) - | Rs.InHundred | Rs.In Hundred
Long Term Housing Loans
Individuals (Secured)
Builder cases & Selt Construction 8,37,925.32
Resale (Home Loan) 4,80,671.96 13,18,597.28 10,10,811.84
Project Loan
Residential Real Estate Project Loan (Secured) 2,01,403.63 _
| |
TOTAL 15,20,000.91 | 10,10,811.84
Loans granted by VHFL are secured or partly secured by one or
combination of following securities :
a) Registered / Equitable mortgage of property and / or
b) Personal guarantees
Note: 13 Loans and Advances - Others
Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Rs.In Hundred | Rs.In Hundred
Long Term Non- Housing Loans
Individuals (Secured)
Mortgage Loans 4,04 887 .42 3,53,615.89
Loans towards Insurance (Property & Life Insurance) 78,807.06 60,780.66
Loan to Employees & Director (Unsecured) 12,032.08 2447261
TOTAL 4,95,726.56 4,38,869.16
Note: 14 Deferred Tax Assets
. 31t March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Particulars Rs. In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
Opening Balance Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 420.66 .689.56
Add/ Less :- During the Year (245.94) {268.90)
TOTAL 174.72 420.66
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Note: 15 Cash & Bank Balances

. 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Particulars Rs. In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
Cash & Cash equivalents:

Cash on hand 33.66 43252
Balance with Banks
In Current account 3,671.88 7578.11
Fixed Deposits with Bank 1,73,636.67 2,06,205.70
TOTAL 1,77,342.21 | 2,14,216.33
Note: 16 Other Short Term Loans & Advances
. 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Particulars Rs. In Hundred | Rs. In Hundred
Advance for Software - 15,000.00
Deposit towards Rented Office 4.500.00 4.,500.00
Deposit with Central KYC Registry 50.00 -
TOTAL 4,550.00 19,500.00
Note: 17 Other Current Assets
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Particulars

Rs. In Hundred

Rs. In Hundred

Advances to Creditors for Exp.
Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits
Advance Tax (Net of Provision)
TDS Receivable (Net of Provision)
Prepaid Expenses

GST Input”

620.54 715.74

207542 273.03
2,533.48 3,73242

s .., 2,143.50 1,599.81
508.07 559.31

7,811.94 7,284.81
15,692.95 14,165.12
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Note: 18 Income from Operation

Particul 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
i Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred
Processing Fees 15,863.12 9,750.66
Interest on Home & Mortgage Loans 2,15,006.71 1,83,571.93
Interest on Other Loans (Staff Loan) 183.29 148.77
Other Miscellaneous incomes 408.42 4,895.56
Recovery in Prudential W/ off Accounts 41,682.69 23,402.09
TOTAL 2,73,144.23 2,21,769.01
Note: 19 Other Income
Particul 31st March, 2024 31 March, 2023
lculars Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred
Interest on Fixed Deposits with Bank 12,172.21 10,124.36
Interest on IT Refund 311.57 56,96
TOTAL 12,483.78 10,181.32
Note; 20 Employee Benefit Expenses
Particul 31+ March, 2024 31st Maxch, 2023
SHIS Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred
Salaries & Allowances 87,362.81 60,451.67
Gratuity 1143215 2,214.07
Leave Encashment 476.50 85.06
Directors Remuneration 89,000.00 58,000.00
Staff Welfare Exp. 3491.36 1,065.38
1,91,762.82 1,21,816.18
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Note: 21 Other Administrative Expenses

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred
Advertising Exp. 479.50 327.64
Membership & Subscription 2,081.55 198.95
Audit Fees & Professional Fees 1,700.00 1,400.00
Bank Charges 38.29 172.50
Business Promotion Exp. 5,906.60 -
Repairs & Maintenance 2,125.00 1,500.10
Service Charge & Storage Charges 4,184.15 3,058.66
Computer Exp, Software Exp 5,397.90 116.75
Cloud Service Charges 98.66 -
Conveyance Expenses 691.67 2,042.73
Credit Rating Exp. 500.00 -
Professional Fees 15,040.39 9415.01
Rent Exp. 1,200.00 1,200.00
ROC Fees | 7,710.30 4,937.86
Electricity Exp 1,715.20 1,015.20
Printing & Stationery Exp 1,435.64 609.90
Insurance Exp. | 297.89 480.98
Postage & Courier ' 48.98 5955
Office Exp | 593.24 665.31
Commission Expenses 1,712.12 1,795.45
Interest on Late Payment (GST/TDS}) | 335.52 8.35
Late filing Fees i 52.40 106.00
Sundry Balances W/ off [ 11,699.65 6,602.55
Court Fees & Stamp Papers ' 2,016.40 35.00
Recruitment Exp. | 43.00 100.00
Training Exp. 1 1,035.00 25,00
Travelling Exp. | 274.04 537.36
Short/Excess Income Tax Provision for earlier years ' (223.01) 84.92
GST (RCM) Exp. 4,150.36 -
Sundry Advances W/ off | 10,015.10 =
TOTAL ‘ 82,355.54 36,895.77
Note: 22 Finance Cost
Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred
Bank Interest on Term Loan - -
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Note: 23 a) Details of Provision for Loan Assels during the year as under:

Particulars 31st March 2024 31t March 2023

Rs. In Hundred Rs. In Hundred
Provision for Sub-standard Loan A/cs (3,296.37) 36,309.31
Provision for Doubtful Loan A/cs 16171.81 (18,749.32)
Provision for Restructured Sub-std. A/cs (20,017.90) 53,487.19
Provision for Std. Structured A/cs {(7,890.15) (15,911.07)
Provision for Standard Loan A/cs 1,389.95 -
TOTAL (13,642.66) 55,136.11

Note: 23 b) Contingent Provisions against Standard/Sub standard, doubtful and loss assets
(Rs. In Hundred)

For the year ended 315t March 2024

Particulars Standard Sub- | houbtful | Loss Total
standard

Loans
Housing Loan
Individuals 12,35,812.43 21,541.52 | 61,243.33 - 13,18,597.28
Corporate 2,01,403.63 - - - 2,01,403.63
Non Housing Loans
(Mortgage Loan)
Individuals 3,98,730.12 6,156.30 1.00 - 4,04,887.42
Corporate - - . - -
Insurance Loan
Individuals 74,858.89 1,778.09 | 2,170.08 - 78,807.06
Corporate == - o - -
Staff Loan 12.‘.0?{2:08 - — - . .1_2,032.08
TOTAL LOANS 19,22,837.15 2947591 | 6341441 - 20,15,727.47
Provision
Housing Loan
Individuals 3,100.00 3,231.23 | 46,075.97 - 52,407.20
Corporate 1,520.00 - = = 1,520.00

55




Non Housing Loans
(Mortgage Loan)

Individuals 1,600.00 923.45 1.00 e 2,524.45
Corporate - - == == i

Insurance Loan

Individuals 330.00 266.72 - -- 2.331.90
Corporate = == =r = ~
Staff Loan 50.00 = = - 50.00
Provision Restructured 58,209.75 —_ - - 58,209.75
Loans

Total Provision - | 64,809.75 4421.40 | 4781215 - 1,17,043.30

Note: 23 ¢) Details of movement in provisions for Standard and NPA Assets during the year ended as
under:

(Rs. In Hundred)
Particulars As at 31t March 2023 Addition/(Deduction) | As at 31st March 2024
Loans
Housing Loan
(Previous Year
Indculding Insurance
Loan)
Standard Assets
Individual 3,763.57 (663.57) 3,100.00
Corporate - 1,520.00 1,520.00

Non -Housing Loan
{Mortgage Loans &
Insurance Loan)

Standard Asset
Individual - 1,446.48 533.52 . 1980.00
Corporate =" - -

5,210.05 1,389.95 6,600.00

Restructure Loan Assets
Housing Loan (Including
Insurance Loan)
Individual @10% 15,124.71 7,431.78 22,556.49
Individual @15% 37,824.76 (3,990.03) 33,834.73
Corporate ==
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Non -Housing Loan
{Mortgage Loans &
Insurance Loan)

Individual @10%
Individual @15%
Corporate

1,149.17
2,872.91

56,971.55

Sub-standard &
Doubtful Loan Assets
Housing Loan
| {Previous Yer Including
Insurance Loan)
Individual
Corporate

Non -Housing Loan
(Mottgage Loans &
Insurance Loan)

Individual
Corporate

64,382.12

5,369.73

(421.76)
(1,781.79)

72741
1,091.12

1,238.20

58,209.75

(15,074.92)

(2,443.38)

49,307.20

2,926.35

69,751.85

(17,518.30)

52,233.55

Provision utilized for
prudential W/ off Loans

l

[ Total

1,31,933.45

(14,890.15)

1,17,043.30

Note: 24 Depreciation & Amortised Cost

, | 31+ March, 2024 | 315t March, 2023 |
Particulars | Rs.InHundred | Rs.In Hundred
Depreciation | 3,904.23 3,099.28

TOTAL : 3,904.23 3,099.28

25. There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are
outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2024,

26. The main business of the Company is to provide loans for the purchase or construction of residential
houses and as such there are no separate reportable segments as specified in Accounting Standard (AS 17)
on “Segment Reporting”, and under paragraph 29 (2) of the Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010, which needs to be reported.




27. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:- (Rs. In Hundred)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Foreign Exchange Earning Nil Nil
Foreign Exchange Outgo (Recruitment Nil Nil
Charges)

28. Payment to Auditors:- {Rs. In Hundred)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Audit Fees (Statutory) 500.00 500.00
Other Professional Fees (Statutory Auditor) 250.00 150.00
Concurrent & Internal Audit Fees 1,100.00 900.00
Other Professional Fees (Concurrent Auditor) 100.00 100.00

Total 1,950.00 1,650.00

29. Earnings per share (EPS) {Rs. In Hundred)
Particulars 2023-2024 2022-23
a. Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 15,535.62 10,833.31
b. Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS 1,87,00,000 1,37,00,000
(in Numbers)

c. Weighted Average number of equity shares for diluted
EPS (in Numbers) 1,87,00,000 1,37,00,000
d. Nominal value of equity shares 10 10 .
e. Basic EPS 0.08 0.08
f. Diluted EPS
0.08
0.08
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30. Disclosure as required by National Housing Bank: The following disclosures have been given in terms
of National Housing Bank’s notification no. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 9, 2017
and in terms of the circular no. NHB/ND/DRS/Pol-No.35/2010-11 dated October 11, 2010:

i) Additional Information (as certified and confirmed by the management)
Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
a. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) 156.49% 156.51%

b. Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect Rs.2,003.70 Lac Rs.1,425.21 Lac

ii) Reserve Fund u/s 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987

31°t March, 31* March,

Particulars 2024 Rs.In | 2023 Rs. In
Hundred Hundred

Balance at the beginning of the year 33,754.84 31,588.18
Add:- Transfer During the Year 3,062.53 2,166.66
Less:- Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s Nil Nil
29C of the NHB Act, 198
Balance at the end of the year TOTAL 36,817.37 33,754.84

i) VHFL has not exceeded limit prescribed by National Housing Bank for Single Borrower Limit (SBL) and
Group Borrower Limit (GBL).

iv) VHFL has not obtained registration from any other financial sector regulator,

v) During the year, (a) no prior period items occurred which has impact on profit and loss account, (b} no
change in any accounting policy, (c) there were no circumstances in which revenue recognition has been
postponed pending the resolution of significant uncertainties and (d) there is no withdrawal from Reserve
fund.

vi) VHFL has no subsidiary company. Hence, requirement of ¢onsolidated Financial Statements is not
applicable to VHFL.

31. Disclosures:

Disclosures required by the Reserve Bank of India /National Housing Bank as per Notification
DOR.FIN.HFC. CC.No.120/03.10.136/2020-21 dated February 17. 2021- Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021.

31.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policles ~

The accounting policies regarding key areas of operations are disclosed as note 1 of Accounting palicy to
the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024.

311 Capital
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
() CRAR (%) 156.49% 156.51%
(ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 155.99% 155.99%
(iify CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 0.50% 0.52%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- 1l Capital NIL NIL
{v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt nstruments NIL NIL
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31.2 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

[Rs. in Hundred]

Particulars Current | Previous
B . Year Year
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 | 33754.84 | 31,588.18
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii} of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under NIL NIL,
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Total 33,754.84 | 3158818
Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 3,062.53 2,166.66
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section NIL NIL
29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Less:
a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NIL NIL
NHB Act, 1987
b} Amount withdrawn from the special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of
Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which has been taken into NIL NIL
account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 | 36,817.37 | 33,754.84
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section NIL NIL
29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Total 36,817.37 33,754.84
31.3 Investments:~ [Rs., In Hundred]
Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
1. Value of Inyvestments .
(i) Gross value of investments NIL NIL
(a) In India NIL NIL
(b} Outside India NIL NIL
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation NIL NIL
(a) In India NIL NIL
(b) Outside India NIL NIL
(iii) Net value of investments
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{a) In India NIL NIL
(b) Outside India NIL NIL
2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on

investments

(i} Opening balance NIL NIL
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year NIL

(iii) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the| NIL NIL
year

(iv) Closing balance NIL NIL

31.4 Derivatives

1) The Company has no transactions/exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.
2) The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure on March 31, 2024 (P.Y. Nil)

31.5.1 Forward Rate Agreement (FRA)/Interest Rate Swap [Rs.in Hundred]
Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
(i) The notional principal of swap agreements NIL NIL
(i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to NIL NIL
fulfil their obligations under the agreements
(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps NIL NIL
_(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps * NIL NIL
(v) The fair value of the swap book @ NIL NIL
31.5.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative [Rs. In Hundred]
Particulars Amount

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the NIL
year {(instrument wise)
{ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on NIL
315t March 2024. (instrument wise)
(iif) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not NIL
| “highly effective” (instrument wise)

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstandlng and NIL
not™highly-effective” (instrument wise) ~ .,

31.5.3 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

A. Qualitative Disclosure
The Company has no transactions/exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year.

B. Quantitative Disclosure [Rs, In Hundred]
Particulars Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derlvatives

(1) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
(ii) Marked to Market Positions




(a) Assets (+) NIL NIL ]
(b) Liability (-) NIL NIL
(iii) Credit Exposure NIL NIL
(iv) Unhedged Exposures NIL NIL

31.6  Assets Liability Management {Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities)
Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities As At March 31, 2024, (Rs. In Hundred)
1 Sto | 15 Over Over1l | Qver3 |
Particulars day 14 daysto | one E:‘a;?ml;li g:il;li g‘;ﬁﬁs year to to b Qver 5
to7 days | 30/31 month upto 3 t0 6 to1 vear 3 years years | Total
days days upto 2 P Y years
months months | months
Liabilities 000 | 000 | 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits 000 | 000 | 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Borrowings from 000 | 000 | o000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
banks
Market 000 | 000 | 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Borrowings
Foreign 000 |[000 | 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Currency
Liabilities
Assets
Advances 0.00 [170000[ 195000 | 3,65000 | 365000 | 10950.00 | 21,900.00 | 87,600.00 | 90,000.00 | 179332747 | 201572747
Investments 000 [000 | o000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Foreign 000 | 000 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Currency
Assets
Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities As At March 31, 2023, [Rs. In Hundred]
1 810 | 15 Over Overl | Over3
Particulars da 14 daysto | one Over 2 Over3 | Overb ear to to 5 Over5
Y Y months | months | months 4
to7 days | 30/31 month t03 106 to 1 3 years years Total
days days upto 2 P year years
months months months
Liabilities 000 | 000 | 000 000 |~ 000. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0r00
Deposits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 -
Borrowings from 000 | 000 | o000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
banks
Market 000 | 000 | o000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Borrowings
Foreign Currency | 000 | 0.00 [ 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabilities
Assets
Advances 0.00 (50000 50000 | 100000 | 1,000.00 | 3,000.00 85,000.00 | 1,253,210.00 [1,449,681.01
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Investments 000 | 000 000 0.00 .00 000 [ 000 000 | 000 0.00 000

Foreign Currency [ 000 0.00 000 0.00 000 000 | 0.00 000 000 0.00 0.00
Assets

317 Exposure

31.7.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector [Rs. in Hundred]
Catego Current Previous
gory Year Year

a) |Direct Exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential 18,02,291.76| 14,25,208.40
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented

(if) |Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates
(office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial NIL NIL
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-
tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and
construction, etc.). Exposure shall also include non-fund
based limits

(iii) |Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitised exposures -

a. Residential 2,01,403.63 NIL

'b. Commercial Real Estate NIL NIL
b) Indirect Exposure NIL NIL
Fund based and non-fund based exposure on NHB and HECs
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector | 20,03,695.39| 14,25,208.40

31.7.2 Exposure to Capital Market

The Company has no exposure to capital market directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.
[Rs. In Hundred]

Current Previous

Particulars Year Year
(i) |Direct investment in equity shar&sé_convertible bonds, convertible]|  NIL NL |
debentures and units of equity-orientéd mutual funds the
COorpus :
of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
(i} |Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities NIL NIL

or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including
IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and
units of equity-oriented mutual funds

{iii) |Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible NIL NIL
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutualfunds are taken as primary security

(iv) |Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the NIL NIL
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible




i Current Previous
Particulars Year Year
debentures or units of equity oriented mutuat funds i.e, where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully
cover the advances
V) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and NIL NIL
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers
(vi) |Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /| NIL NIL
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies
inanticipation of raising resources -
(vii) | Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues NIL NIL
(i) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds/Altemate Investment NIL NIL
Funds (both registered and unregistered)
Total Exposure to Capital Market NIL NIL
31.7.3 Sectoral Exposure
Current Year Previous Year
Total Exposure (includes Gross Percentageof Total Exposure {includes GrassNPAs Parcentageof
onbalance NPAs Gross NPAs to on balance (€ crore} Gross NPAs to
sheet and off-balance {Ecrore) | total exposurein sheet and off-balance total exposure In
shaat exposure) (¥ that sector sheet exposure) {€ crora) that sector
Sectors crora)
1‘|;:iﬁ::::;:d NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2. Industry NIL MIL ™IL MIL NIL wIL
i NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL =
... HIL NIL NIL ML MIL NIL
Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL wIL
:;:::: oi'g:’::g MIL NIL WIL NIL NIL KMIL
3. Services
feee NIL NIL MIL HMIL MIL MIL
[ WIL NIL KIL NIL NiL NIL
Others NIL MIL MIL NIL NIL NIL
4. Personal Loans -
n Home Loans 138) [(%:3 &£01% 10.27 084 2.18%
ii} Loan Against
412 1X0) 1.46% 354 007 1 93%%
Proparty
iii} insurance Loan 07e 004 5 06% ] 004 & 56%
;f::.zm‘::;' Loans 1872 093 497% 1442 095 659%
5. Others -
Real Estate Project Loan zal NIL NIL N NIL NIL NIL
(4]
<, 4
= g}
(o) m
<! i 64
(=
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31.7.4 Details of financing of parent company products
There is no financing of parent Company products.

31.7.5 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC
The Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit and Group Borrower Limit as prescribed by
NHB during the financial year.

31.7.6 Unsecured Advances
The Company has not financed any unsecured advances against intangible securities such
as rights, licenses, authority etc as collateral security.

31.7.7 Exposure to group companles engaged in Real estate business
The Company has following exposures to group companies engaged in the real estate business in the
current and previous year.

S.No. | Description Current Year | Current Year | Previous Yr. | Previous Yr.
Amount % of owned | Amount (€in | % of owned
{¥ in Hundred) fund Hundred) fund

(i) | Exposure to any
single entity in a 2,01,403.63 9.70 NIL NIL
group engaged in real
estate business

(i) | Exposure to all
entities in a group 2,01,403.63 9.70 NIL NIL
engaged in real estate
business

31.7.8 Intra-group exposures
a. Total amount of intra-group exposures:- Current Year Rs.2,01,40,363/-, (Previous Year Rs. NIL).

b. Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures :- Current Year Rs.2,01,40,363/-, (Previous Year
NIL).

¢. ¢. Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the HFC on borrowers/customers :-
Current ')’ear 9.99%, Previous Year NIL.

.,

31.7.9 Unhedged foreign currency exposure _
Company’s unhedged foreign currency exposures is NIL, Previous Year NIL.
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31.7.10 Related Party Disclosure

\ Related P .
arent Associates i
N Subsidiari / Key Relalz:es o
\ (as per es Joint Management Man ym nt Others* Total
N ownershipor Ventures/ | @ ageme
control) Group of Cos. Personnel@
._\\I\

\ Current Pravious Current | Previcu Previou Current ) Current Previous Curmrent | Previou )
lte ms \'\_ Year Year fear £ 'Year current Year 5 Year Year it fear Tear Tear 5 Year Current Yaar Previcus Year
Borrowings
Depasits
Placement Of
Depasits
Advances - - - - 2,0L,403.63 - 11,500.00 22,000.00 ] . . - 2,12,903.63 22,000.00
Investments
Purchase of fixed
assats
Sale of fixed Assats
Intarast paid
Interest received - I * - - 831192 = - = ] . - E 9,311.92
Others®

31.7.11 M/s Viva Winner Venture Realtors LLP has been sanctioned with Term Loan facility of Rs

2.00 Crore, during the financial year 2023-24. The credit facility granted to the said company is well
within the permitted exposure ceiling to group companies, as prescribed by Reserve Bank Of India
Master Direction 2021.

31.7.12 Except above, No other group com pany is having any investment or financial dealings W|th '
M/s Viva Home Finance Ltd.

31.8 Miscellaneous
a) Registration obtained from other Financial sector regulators :- No.

b) Group Structure: -

1) Viva Home Finance Limited, a group company of Viya Group, is registered with National Housing
Bank, vide Registration No. 09.0108.13 dated 4th September 2013.
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d)

e}

f)

9)

h)

2) M/s Viva Holdings, a partnership firm, is major shareholder of Viva Home Finance Limited,
holding (Through its Partners) 99.73% shares.
3) The group companies / firms of Viva Group are enumerated as under —

a) M/s Viva Home Finance Ltd.

b) M/s Viva Holdings

c) M/s Viva Enterprises Ltd.

d) M/s Viva Winner Venture Realtors LLP

e) M/s Viva Homes Private Ltd.

f) M/s Viva Infra Projects Private Ltd.

g) M/s Viva Land Developers Private Ltd.

h) M/s Viva Palghar Realtors Private Ltd.

iy M/s Viva Saphale Realtors Private Ltd.

J) M/s Viva Unique Developers Private Ltd.

k) M/s Viva Umroli Land Developers Private Ltd.
) M/s Viva Sarathi Infratech Private Ltd.

m) M/s Viva Motor Sports Private Ltd.

n) M/s Viva Winner Link 1 Realtors Private LLP
0} M/s Viva Konkan Developers Private Ltd.

4) Among the aforesaid Group Companies, only M/s Viva Holdings (Through its partners) has
subscribed for shares of M/s Viva Home Finance Ltd. and is major share holder of company.

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:

Company has not borrowed any Loans hence Rating not applicable.

Remuneration of Directors

Details of Remuneration of Directors are disclosed in Note 20 Related party transactions.

Management
Refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis report for the relevant disclosures.

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no prior period items that have impact on the current year's profit and loss.
Revenue Recognition

There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the
resolution of significant uncertainties.

Consolidated Financial Statement (CFS) _

VHFL is not a Holding Company & note have any Subsidiary Company hence Consoclidated
Financial Statements not applicable. '
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31.9 Additional Disclosures

a. Provisions and Contingencies

[Rs. In Hundred]
Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit Current | Previous
and Loss Account Year Year
'___P}_o@'ts for depreciation on Invgstmeﬁ o . NIL NIL
Provision towards NPA (7,142.46) | 55,136.11
Provision made towards Income tax 54,66.52 3,900.78—'
'Other Provision and Contingencies (Gratuity & Leave Encashment) 11,908.65 | 2,299.13
| Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.)
(Provision for Standard Assets including Loans Restructured) (6,500.20) | -

Note:- Provision for Standard Assets including Loans Restructured, additional Provision taken due to
COVID-19 Regulatory package announce by RBL

[Rs. in Hundred]
Break up of Loans & Advances & Housing Non-Housing
Provisions thereon Current Previous Current Previous
year year year year
Standard Assets
a} Total Outstanding Amount 14,37,216.06 | 9,68,090.00 4,85,621.09 3,86,092.61
b) Provisions made 4,620.00 3,763.57 1,980.00 1,446.48
Sub- Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount 21,541.52 73,315.96 7,934.39 7,665.32
b) Provisions made 3,231.23 51,321.20 1,190.17 9,365.73
Doubtful Assets - Category I
a) Total Outstanding Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Provisions made 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00
Doubtful Assets - Category II
a) Total Outstanding Amount 36,784.24 14,482.13 1,145.60 0.00
b) Provisions made 21,616.88 13,033.92 710.70 0.00
Doubtful Assets - Category 111
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 24,459.09 27.00 1,025.48 | 4.00
b) Provisions made 24,459.09 27.00 1,025.48 4.00
Loss Assets
a) Total Qutstanding Amount (.00 0.00 “"0.00- 0.00
b} Provisions made 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00
Total
a) Total Outstanding Amount 15,20,000.91 | 10,10,811.84 4,95,726.56 4,38,869.16
b) Provisions made 53,927.20 68,145.69 4,906.35 6,816.21
Note: a. The category of Doubttul Assets will be as under:

Period for which the assets has been considered Doubtful Category

Upto one year: Category - I

One to three years: Category - I

More than three years : Category - III
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a. Draw Down from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2024 (P.Y. Nil)

b. Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/ holding HFCs)[Rs. in Hundred]

Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
Total deposits of twenty largest depositors N.A. N.A.
Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of N.A. N.A,
the deposit taking HFC
[Rs. in Hundred]
¢. Concentration of Loans & Advances
Particulars Cgrrent Previous
ear Year
Total loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers 6,63,014.44 | 4,56,610.00
Percentage of loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers to total 32.89% 31.50%
advances of the HFC

d. Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)

[Rs. In Hundred]

) Current Previous
Partic Year Year
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 6,63,014.4¢4 | 4,56,610.00
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to 32.89% 31.50%
total exposure of the HFC on borrowers/ customers

€. Concentration of NPAs

[Rs. in Hundred]

. Current Previous
Particulars Year Year
Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts 92,869.32 95,460.00

f. Sector-wise NPAs
Sr.No. |Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector
A, Housing Loans "

1. |Individuals 2.40 % (Net)

2, Builders/Project loans Nil

3. Corporates Nil

4. Others (specify) Nil

Non- Housing Loans

Individuals 1.08% (Net)
Builders/Project loans Nil
Corporates Nil
Others (specify) Nil
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g. Movement of NPAs

[Rs. in Hundred]

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 2.07 1.81
(i) [Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a)  [Opening balance 95,490.00 |  74,950.00
(b) | Additions during the year 1,66,672.32 | 3,49,310.00
(c) Reductions during the year 1,69,272.00 3,28,770.00
(d) Closing balance 92,890.32 95,490.00
(iii) [Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 25,740.00 41,440.00
(b) Additions during the year ) 1,22,005.77 2,41,180.00
(c) Reductions during the year 1,07,089.00 2,56,870.00
(d) Closing balance 40,656.77 25,740.00
(iv) [Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening balance 69,750.00 33,520.00
(b} Provisions made during the year 24,445.03 69,040.00
(<) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions 41,961.48 32,810.00
(d) Closing balance 52,233.55 69,750.00
h. Overseas Assets
The Company does not have any overseas assets.
{Rs. In Crore)}
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
NIL NIL NIL

i.
accounting Norms)

Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per

The Company does not have any off balance sheet Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms.

31.10 Disclosure of Complaints

Sr. . Current Previous
No Particulars Year Year
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year NIL NIL
(b) No. of complaints received during the year 1 NIL
(c) No. of complaints disposed during the year 1 NIL
(i) Of which, number of complaints rejected by the HFC NIL NIL
(d) |No. of complaints pending at the end of the year NIL NIL

Maintainable complaints received by the HFC from the Office of Ombudsman (applicable in
case included under The Reserve Bank — Integrated Ombudsman Scheme,

2021)
Number of maintainable complaints received by the HFC NIL NIL
(€) from the Office of Ombudsman
(i) Of (e), number aof complaints resolved in favour of the NIL NIL
HFCby Office of Ombudsman
(i) Of (e), number of complaints resolved NIL NIL
throughconciliation/ mediation/ advisories issued by
the Office of
Ombudsman
V(i) Of (e), number of complaints resolved after passing L. NIL
* ||ofAwards by the Office of Ombudsman against the HFC 42 Fi g
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) Number of Awards unimplemented with the stipulated
time{other than those appealed)

NIL

NIL

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in
the Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 and covered in the ambit of the Scheme.

Top five ground of Complaints received by HFCs from Customers

Grounds of Number of | Number of % increase/ Number of Of 5, number
complaints, complaints |complaints | decrease in the complaints of complaints
(i.e. pending atthe | received number of pending at the pending
complaints beginning of | during the complaints end of theyear | beyond 30
relating to} the year year received over the days
previous year
1 2 3 4 5 6
Current Year
Excess Interest NIL 1 100% NIL NIL
Charged
Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total
Previous Year
Excess Interest NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Charged
Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
31.11 Corporate governance
31.11.1 Composition of the Board
Name of Director Capacity(i.e. DIN Number of No. of other |[Remuneration No. of shares
Director since Executive/ Board Directorships held in and
Non- Meetings convertible
Executive/ Held & instruments
Attended
Omprakash |01-07-2018 Executive 03645948 10410 NIL 65,00,000/ NIL
Dua
Rohil J. 14-12-2011 Executive 03556990 10/10 15 NIL 7500
Thakur
‘Awadhesh 01-09-2023 Executive 07575417 | 10/6 NIL 21,00,000/- NIL
*| Kumar Dixit '
Dinesh Non- 02402409 10/10 6 3,00,000/- NIL
Kumar 30-05-2012 Executive
Gowil
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31.11.2 Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous

financial year.
Sr. Name of Capacity Naﬁure of Effective date
No. Director (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ change
. . (resignation,
Chairman/ Promoter nomines/ appointment)
Independent)
| Awadhesh Kumar Dixit Executive (Whole-time Director) Appointment 01-05-2023
31.11.3 Committees of the Board and their composition
31.11.3.1 The names of the committees of the Board.
a) ALCO COMMITTEE
b) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
¢) AUDIT COMMITTEE
a) Alco Committee:
Sr. | Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of No. of shares
No. Committee | (i.e., Executive/ Non- Meetings of the held in theHFC
since Executlve/ Chairman/ Committee
Promoter nominee/
1. |Omprakash Dua 16-08-2018 Chairperson 4 4 NIL
2. |Rohil J Thakur 28-09-2012 Executive 4 4 7500
3. [Dinesh Kumar Govil | 28-09-2012 Non-executive 4 4 NIL
|
b} Risk Management Committee:
Sr. | Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of No. of shares
No. Committee (i.e., Executive/ Non- Meetings of the held in theHFC
since Executive/ Chairman/ Committee
Promoter nominee/
1. | Omprakash Dua 16-08-2018 Chairperson 4 4 NIL
2. | Rohil J Thakur 28-09-2012 Executive 4 4 7500
3. | Dineshkumar Govil | 28-09-2012 Non-executive 4 4" NIL
c) Audit Committee
Sr. Name ofDirector Member of Capacity Number of No. of
No. Committee (i.e., Executive/ Non- Meetings of the shares
since Executive/ Chairman/ Committee held in the
Promoter nominee! HFC
1. Omprakash Dua 16-08-2018 Chairperson 4 4 NIL
2. Rohil J Thakur 28-09-2012 Executive 4 4 7500
‘Mﬁighkumar Govil 28-09-2012 4 4 NIL
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31.11.4 General Body Meetings
Details of the General BodyMeetings held during the year.

Sr. Type of Meeting Annual/ | Date and Special resolutions passed '
No. Extra-Ordinary) Place
1 Extra Ordinary General Meeting  01-06-2023, Issue of Equity Share, Private ‘
Reg. Office, Virar Placement. |
2 | Annual General Meeting 21-08-2023 a) Appointment of Whole-time
Reg. Office, Virar Director Mr. Awadhesh
Kumar Dixit
b) Appointment of Auditors
¢) Adoption of Annual
Financial Statements for
the year ended 31-03-2023
L3 Extra Ordinary General Meeting  15-09-2023 | Issue of Equity Share, Private
! Reg. Office, Virar Placement
4 | Extra Ordinary General Meeting 12-01-2024 a) Increase of Authorised
Reg. Office, Virar Share Capital from
Rs.20.00 Crore to Rs.30.00
Crore
b) Alteration in Capital Clause
of MOA
5 | Extra Ordinary General Meeting| 02-03-2024 |Increase in Managerial
Reg. Office, Virar Remuneration

31115 Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

There is no default: in compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013,
including with respect to compliance with accounting and secretarial standards.

31.11.6 Details of penalties and strictures

During the financial year, there is no instance of any penalty/punishment/compounding
of offences under Companies Act, 2013, Reserve Bank of India, National Housing
Bank or any other statutory authority or regulator.

31.12 Schedules to the Balance Sheet of an HFC

{Rs. In Hundred)

- .. Particulars e~
s res . Amount Amount
Liabilities Side outstanding overdue
(1) | Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of NIL NIL
interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) | Debentures: Secured NIL NIL
. Unsecured NIL NIL
(other than falling within the meaning of public NIL NIL
deposits®)
{b} | Deferred Credits NIL NIL
GWLiES  [(C) | Term Loans NIL NIL
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3?: MUMBAI % (d) | Inter-corporate loans and borrowing m NIL
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() | Commercial Paper NIL NIL
(f) | Public Deposits* NIL NIL
(g) | Other Loans (specify nature) NIL NIL
(2) | Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits NIL NIL
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
{a) | In the form of Unsecured debentures NIL NIL
(b) | In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. NIL NIL
debentures where there is a shortfall in the value
of security
(C) | Other public deposits NIL NIL
Assets Side
(3) | Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills .
receivables [other than those included in (4) below]: Amount outstanding
(a) | Secured 20,03,695.39
(b) | Unsecured 12,032.08
(4) | Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assets counting towards asset financing activities
(i) |Lease assets including lease rentals under NIL
sundry debtors
(a) Financial Lease NIL
(b) Operating Lease NIL
(ii} | Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry NIL
debtors
(a) Assets on Hire NIL
(b) Repossessed Assets NIL
(iii)y | Other loans counting towards asset financing NIL
activities
(a) Loans where assets have been NIL
repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above NIL
.| (5) | Break-up of Investments SR NIL
Current Investments NIL
(1) | Quoted NIL
(i) Shares NIL
(a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(jii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
{v) Others (Please Specify) NIL

Unquoted ﬁ

rl \ NIL

2y
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(i) Shares NIL
(a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL o
{iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
{iv) Government Securities ~NIL
v) Others (Please Specify) NIL
‘Long Term Investments
1. | Quoted
(i} Shares NIL
(a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds NIL
{iv) Government Securities NIL
v) Others (Please Specify) NIL
2. | Unquoted
(i} Shares NIL
(a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
i} Debentures and Bonds NIL
| (iii} Units of Mutual Funds NIL
(iv) Government Securities NIL
i v) | Others (Please Specify) NIL

(6) | Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsscured Total

1. | Related Parties**

(&) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL

£5 indiy (b} Companies in the same Group ™" 2,01,403.63 NIL 2,01,403.63

(c) Other related parties NIL 11,500.00 11.500.00

2. | Other than Related parties 18,02,291.76 532.08 18,02,823.84
TOTAL 20,03,685.39 12,032.08 20,15,727.47

7. | Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares
and securities (both quoted and unquoted) :

Category Market Value / | Book Value (Net
Break up or fair of Provisions)
value or NAV
1. Related Parties™
(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL
(b) Companies in the same Group NIL NIL

(¢) * | Other related parties




2. | Other than Related parties NIL NIL
TOTAL NIL NIL
Other Information
Particulars Amount

() | Gross Non-Performing Assets 92,890.32

(a) | Related Parties NIL

(b) | Other than related parties 92,890.32
(i) | Net Non-Performing Assets 40,656.77

(a) | Related Parties NIL

{b) | Other than related parties 40,657.77
(ii) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL

32. Breach of Covenant

VHFL has not availed any loan or issue debt securities, hence not applicable.

33. Additional Regulatory Information

33.1  There is no such immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company.

33.2 There are no investment properties as on March 31, 2024,

33.3 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right- of Use Assets)
based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies {Registered
Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

33.4 The Company has not revalued its Intangible assets based on the valuation by a registered valuer
as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

33.5 Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other
person, that are:

(&) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
Type of Borrower Amount of Loan or Advance Percentage to the Total
in nature of loan outstanding Loans and Advances in the
(Rs. in Lakh) nature of Loans
Promoters NIL NIL
Directors 11.50 0.57%
KMPS NIL NIL
Related Parties 201.40 9.99%

33.6 No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
there under.

33.7 The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other
lender.

33.8 The Company has not any Transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the

Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
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33.10 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2
of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

33.11 No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections
230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

33.12 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

(a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:-

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Company shall :-

(i directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

33.13 There are no such transaction or undisclosed income that need to be disclosed in accordance
with this provision of Companies Act, 2013

33.14 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

34 The previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to make
them comparable with the current year figures.

As per our Report of even date

For Devpura Navlakha & Co. For Viva Home Finance Limited
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